Eastleigh House
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

Monday, 28 February 2022
AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
will meet on
Tuesday, 8 March 2022
beginning at
6:15 pm
in the
Rooms 11/12/13, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

TO:

Councillor Steve Holes (Chair)
Councillor Alex Bourne (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Anne Buckley
Councillor Tina Campbell
Councillor Judith Grajewski
Councillor Wayne Irish

Staff Contacts:

Councillor Adam Manning
Councillor David Pragnell
Councillor Tanya Park
Councillor Bruce Tennent

Catherine
Collins,
Democratic
catherine.collins@eastleigh.gov.uk

Services

Officer,

Sarah King, Corporate Director, Support Services (CFO), tel 023
8068 8011 Email: sarah.king@eastleigh.gov.uk

JOANNE CASSAR
Executive Head of Governance

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website
as well as in other formats.
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting,
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed. To register please
contact the Democratic Services Officer above.
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording and
photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using tablet devices to
access committee papers.

1

2

AGENDA
1.
2.

Apologies
Declarations of Interest
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the
agenda. Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.

3.

Minutes (Pages 5 - 10)
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 8 February 2022.

4.

Public Participation
Public seating will be limited at this meeting. You can submit questions in
advance of the meeting to the following email:
democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk. The deadline for submissions is 12pm on
Monday 7 March 2022.
Please let us know if you wish to attend the meeting in person so that we
can manage numbers. We are still encouraging all those in attendance to
wear a face covering and take a lateral flow test before attendance. PLEASE
DO NOT ATTEND IF YOU HAVE ANY COVID-19 SYMPTOMS.
If you are unable to attend, then an officer of the Council can read a written
statement on your behalf.

5.

Action List (Pages 11 - 12)

6.

Internal Audit Charter 2022/23 (Pages 13 - 28)

7.

Internal Audit Strategic Plan 2022 - 23 (Pages 29 - 44)

8.

Cabinet Forward Plan (Pages 45 - 48)

9.

A&R Work Programme (Pages 49 - 50)

10.

Update on Staffing Matters 2021 (Pages 51 - 74)

11.

Exempt Business
To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 in respect of the following item of business on the grounds that it is likely
to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A of the Act.
The Schedule 12A categories have been amended and are now subject to the
public interest test, in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act 2000. This
came into effect on 1 March 2006.
It is considered that the following items are exempt from disclosure and that the

3

public interest in not disclosing the information outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.
EXEMPT ITEM(S)

12.

Housing Acceleration Funding (Pages 75 - 86)

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Monday, 14 March 2022 at 6:15 pm
In the Microsoft Teams Meeting
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s
happening in the Borough. Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus
lots more.

4

Agenda Item 3
1
AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 8 February 2022 (6:15 pm – 7:57 pm)
PRESENT:
Councillor Holes (Chair); Councillors Bourne, Buckley, Campbell,
Grajewski, Irish, Park and Tennent
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Manning
________________________________________
RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)
124.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation on this occasion.

125.

MINUTES
It was agreed an exempt item action list would be kept for any future
exempt items that it was needed for.
RESOLVED –
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2022 be
confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

126.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on
the agenda.

127.

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATING POWERS POLICY
The Senior Chartered Legal Executive (FCILEx) presented the report.
Councillor Grajewski requested confirmation on whether Eastleigh
Borough Council had reviewed its use of the Regulation of Investigatory
Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) over the last two years.
The Legal Services Manager and Data Protection Officer (Solicitor) agreed
to look into whether it had been done, due to Covid-19, and would update
the Committee with the findings.
The Executive Head of Governance and Monitoring Officer stated it would
also be added to the Audit and Resources Work Programme for annual
review to ensure an annual update was provided on the use of RIPA
powers.

5

2

RESOLVED –
That the Audit and Resources Committee noted Regulation of
Investigating Powers Policy.
128.

WRITE OFF OF IRRECOVERABLE DEBTS 2020/21
The Chief Accountant presented the report.
Councillor Grajewski queried whether there was a need to review
processes regarding the recovery of business rates.
The Acting Chief Internal Auditor confirmed that there was an audit
underway for business rates and that she would update the Committee
with the outcome.
RESOLVED –
That the Audit and Resources Committee noted the Write Off of
Irrecoverable Debts 2020/21.

129.

CAPITAL AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
The Chief Accountant presented the report.
Councillor Campbell stated there was quite a lot of technical wording in the
report and requested a glossary or simpler terms for future reports.
The Chief Accountant agreed that this will be provided in future.
The Chair thanked the team involved in the report for a very informative
and comprehensive report.
RESOLVED –
That the Audit and Resources Committee noted the Capital and
Treasury Management Strategy.

130.

INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY MONITORING STATEMENT (QTR3)
The Acting Chief Internal Auditor presented the report.
RESOLVED –
That the Audit and Resources Committee noted the Internal Audit
Quarterly Monitoring Statement (Qtr 3).

6

3

131.

REPAIRS AND RENEWALS REPORT
The Lead Building Surveyor presented the report.
RESOLVED –
That the Audit and Resources Committee noted the Repairs and
Renewals Report.

132.

ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
The Lead Asset Manager presented the report.
RESOLVED –
That the Audit and Resources Committee noted the Asset
Management Strategy.

133.

VERBAL UPDATES FROM MEMBERS REPRESENTING STRATEGIC
RISK MANAGEMENT GROUP (SRMG) / PROCUREMENT EXECUTIVE
GROUP (PEG)
(a)

Strategic Risk Management Group (SRMG)
Councillor Grajewski reported that SRMG had met on 13 January
2022 and they had discussed the following:









The Corporate Risk Register was discussed and there was a
recruitment review underway looking at the corporate
recruitment problem, with a specialist in place for a 6 month
period.
The Finance and Housing Programme risk register was
reviewed and there was a discussion around interest rates.
Councillor Grajewski stated she was pleased that Arlingclose
were going to provide a briefing to Councillors.
The Health and Safety Risk Register updated that the biggest
issue for them was the lack of a back office system, and that
they were currently collecting data via spreadsheets and
emails.
The Insurance renewals had been reviewed and the renewal
quotes were currently in the hands of the brokers.
There was a report on construction cost increases and the
Executive Head of Governance and Monitoring Officer was to
update the next SRMG meeting on how the increasing costs
were impacting the One Horton Heath project. Councillor
Grajewski advised members to read the report.

7

4
The Executive Head of Governance and Monitoring Officer agreed
to share the report with members of the Audit and Resources
Committee via email.
(b)

Procurement Executive Group (PEG)
Councillor Irish reported that PEG met on 1 February 2022 and they
had discussed the following:










134.

Following the resignation of the Senior Legal Specialist, the
Executive Head of Governance and Monitoring Officer had
taken over chairing the group until a replacement was found.
The group reviewed the Performance Indicators and Spend
Analysis. Officers had met to review and revise the
Performance Indicators and Spend Analysis data provided to
the group. The performance indicators included data on
credit card spend, number of waivers, payments made
outside of 10 days and payments made outside of 30 days
and gave a comparison with previous periods. There were
queries regarding the improvement on the figures provided
for payments outside of 10 days and there were concerns
that performance needed to improve and further information
was requested. The Group agreed the information provided
was useful.
An update on the Procurement Action Plan was provided and
the group reviewed the waiver record. A further waiver was
to be circulated following the meeting for councillors to
approve.
The Climate Change Manager provided an update on
progress with the development of a Procurement Policy.
Officers proposed that the policy be called ‘Responsible
Procurement Policy’ to reflect other areas of social
responsibility, not just sustainability. Officers had set a
timetable for it to be completed and adopted by Autumn
2022.
The Executive Head of Governance and Monitoring Officer
provided a summary of the outcome of the Green Paper
(Transforming Public Procurement). She updated that any
changes to legislation would not take effect until 2023 so
officers would review the forthcoming changes alongside the
development of the Responsible Procurement Policy and any
necessary updates to Contract Standing Orders.
The next meeting was set to take place on 28 June 2022.

ACTION LIST
The Committee considered the Action List, which set out the recent
decisions and subsequent actions arising from the Committee.
It was AGREED -

8

5

That the Action List be noted.
135.

CABINET FORWARD PLAN
The Committee considered the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions.
It was AGREED That the current Forward Plan be noted.

136.

A&R WORK PROGRAMME
The Committee considered its current Work Programme.
It was AGREED That the Work Programme be noted.

9

This page is intentionally left blank

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE ACTION LIST

MEETING
DATE

10/03/2020
6.

ITEM TITLE

Internal Audit
Charter 2020/21

RECOMMENDATION/ACTION

Review the possibility of obtaining an
external assessment of compliance with the
Standards through a reciprocal arrangement
with another Local Authority.

CONTACT
OFFICER/
COMMITTEE

Jo Cassar

TARGET
DATE/
COMPLETED

UPDATES

A reciprocal arrangement
with another Local
Authority is currently not
possible due to resource
capacity. The Chief
Internal Auditor (Acting)
has obtained a
reasonable quote from a
specialist company to
carry out this assessment
which has come in at
£2450.00 (There is no
VAT). External
Assessment is booked
with this company for the
week commencing 14th
March.

7.

11

Agenda Item 5

8.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Tuesday 8 March 2022
INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2022/23
Report of the Chief Internal Auditor (Acting)

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Internal Audit Charter 2022/23 be approved.

Summary
With effect from 1 April 2013 all public sector bodies were required to adopt the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards). The Standards were revised April
2017.
The Internal Audit Charter defines the Internal Audit’s, purpose, authority and
responsibility in line with the Standards.
This report presents the Internal Audit Charter for 2022/23.
Statutory Powers
S.151 Local Government Act 1972
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015

Strategic Implications
1. The Internal Audit Team provides independent assurance that the Council’s
risk management, governance and control processes are efficient, compliant,
work effectively and support ambitions of the Council. Internal Audit helps the
Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of governance, risk
management and control processes.

Introduction
2. With effect from 1 April 2013 all public sector bodies were required to adopt
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards). These standards,
which are based on the mandatory elements of the Institute of Internal

13

Auditors (IIA) International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF), are
intended to promote further improvement in the professionalism, quality,
consistency and effectiveness of internal audit across the public sector.
3. The Standards were revised from 1 April 2017 to incorporate new and revised
international standards and consequent amendments to the additional public
sector requirements and interpretations.
4. Within the Standards there is a requirement for an Internal Audit Charter to be
approved annually by the Audit and Resources Committee. This Committee
approved the Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 on 9 March 2021.

Internal Audit Charter
5. Appendix 1 provides the Audit and Resources Committee with the Internal
Audit Charter for 2022/23. The Committee should continue to note that the
role of Chief Internal Auditor is being carried out by the Senior Internal Auditor
to maintain an appropriate segregation of duties. Permanent appointment to
this post is to be made as soon as practically possible. The Committee has
been kept fully apprised of the situation and this is further endorsed by the
External Auditor’s Annual Report presented to this Committee on 11 January
2022.
6. The purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit activity must be
formally defined in an Internal Audit Charter, consistent with the Definition of
Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards.
7. The Internal Audit Charter establishes Internal Audit’s position within the
organisation, including the nature of the Head of Internal Audit’s functional
reporting relationship with the Audit and Resources Committee, authorises
access to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the
performance of engagements, and defines the scope of internal audit
activities. Final approval of the Internal Audit Charter resides with the Audit
and Resources Committee.

Financial Implications
8. As outlined in this report, the Internal Audit Charter will define Internal Audit’s
purpose, authority and responsibility and therefore will ensure that the work of
the team is clear and controlled by a robust set of principles. There will be no
change to the budget as a result of this report.

Risk Assessment
9. The Internal Audit Charter is a requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (the Standards). By not having an Internal Audit Charter the
Internal Audit Section will fail to meet the requirements of the Standards.

14

Eastleigh Borough Council

Equality and Diversity Implications
10. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because it is a
report dealing with internal or procedural matters only. Therefore, it is
considered that the Equality Duty does not need to be addressed and an
Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
11. There are no Climate Change and Environmental implications as a result of
this report. It is a report dealing with Internal Audit procedural matters only.

Conclusion
12. In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards an Internal
Audit Charter 2022/23 has been drafted and it is recommended that it is
approved by this Committee.

LISA SMY
CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR (ACTING)
Date:
15 February 2022
Contact Officer:
Lisa Smy
Tel No:
023 8068 8015
e-mail:
lisa.smy@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached:
One
*Report No
Internal Audit Charter 2022/23
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.
* The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017

Eastleigh Borough Council

15

This page is intentionally left blank

Eastleigh Borough Council
INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER
2022/23

Version

Date

Author

nd

12 July 2016

rd

18 July 2017

th

10 July 2018

th

12 June 2019

th

10

th

9 March 2021

th

8 March 2022

16/17 – 2 review

17/18 – 3 review

18/19 – 4 review

19/20 – 5 review

20/21 – 6 review

21/22 – 7 review

22/23 – 8 review

th

Joanne Cassar, Chief Internal
Auditor

th

Joanne Cassar, Lead Audit
Specialist (Chief Internal
Auditor)

th

Joanne Casar, Internal Audit
Lead Specialist (Chief Internal
Auditor)

th

Joanne Cassar, Chief Internal
Auditor

th

March 2020

Joanne Cassar, Chief Internal
Auditor

th

Joanne Cassar, Executive
Head of Governance

th

Lisa Smy, Chief Internal
Auditor (Acting)

17

Eastleigh Borough Council
Internal Audit Charter 2022/23
1. Standards for Professional Practice
1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017 provides a consolidated
approach to audit standards across the whole of the public sector
providing continuity, sound corporate governance and transparency.
1.2 The mandatory guidance within the Institute of Internal Auditors’
International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) encompasses:

The Standards

Definition of Internal Auditing

Code of Ethics

Core Principles
1.3 The Standards require all internal audit activities to implement and retain
an ‘Internal Audit Charter’. The Internal Audit Charter describes the
purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit activity.
1.4 The Chief Internal Auditor is responsible for reviewing the Charter and
presenting it to the Executive Head of Governance, Chief Financial Officer
(CFO), Executive Leadership Team and Audit and Resources Committee
annually for review and approval.

2.

Purpose & Mission

2.1 The purpose of Eastleigh Borough Council’s Internal Audit Team is to
provide independent assurance that the Council’s risk management,
governance, and control processes are efficient, compliant, work
effectively and support the ambitions of the Council.
2.2 The mission of Internal Audit is to enhance and protect organisational
value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight.
2.3 Internal Audit will:











Demonstrate integrity;
Demonstrate competence and due professional care;
Be objective and free from undue influence (independent);
Align with strategies, objectives and risks of the organisation;
Demonstrate quality and continuous improvement;
Communicate effectively;
Provide risk- based assurance;
Be insightful, proactive, and future focused;
Promote a culture of anti-fraud; and
Promote organisational improvement.

2.4 Internal Audit helps the Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of governance, risk management and control processes.

18

3.

Authority

3.1 The requirement for an Internal Audit function is contained in Regulation 6
of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which requires the Council
to:
“undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting
records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the proper
practices in relation to internal control”.
3.2 The standards for ‘proper practice’ in relation to internal audit are laid
down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (updated 2017). The
Standards apply to all internal audit service providers, whether in house,
shared services or outsourced.
3.3 The responsibility for maintaining an adequate and effective system of
internal audit within Eastleigh Borough Council lies with the Chief
Financial Officer (S151 Officer).
3.4 The Chief Internal Auditor is accountable for ensuring responsibility is
assigned for the effective management of the internal audit activity in
accordance with the ‘Definition of Internal Auditing’, the ‘Code of Ethics’
and ‘the Standards’.
3.5 Eastleigh Borough Council’s Constitution, Part 4, contains the Council’s
Financial Procedure Rules. Internal Audit’s responsibilities are separately
recorded in section 4 (paragraphs 4.11-4.17).

4.

Organisation

4.1 The Chief Internal Auditor will report functionally to the Audit and
Resources Committee and organisationally (day to day) to the Executive
Head of Governance and Corporate Director (Chief Financial Officer
(S151 officer)).
4.2 Internal audit is independent in its planning and operation and as such the
team has unrestricted access to, and can communicate and interact
directly with the:






Chief Executive;
Monitoring Officer, Corporate Directors, Executive Heads;
Councillors including specifically the Chair of the Audit & Resources
Committee (including private meetings without management
present);
All levels of management; and
other council employees as necessary.

4.3 The internal audit activity, with strict accountability for confidentiality and
safeguarding records and information, is authorised to:

19






5.

Have full, free and unrestricted access to all of Eastleigh Borough
Council’s functions, records, property, and personnel pertinent to
carrying out any engagement.
Allocate resources, set frequencies, select subjects, determine
scopes of work, apply techniques required to accomplish audit
objectives, and issue reports.
Require, and receive, any necessary explanations concerning any
matter under examination;
Require any employee of the Council to produce any Council
property or asset under their control.

Independence and Objectivity

5.1 All Internal Auditors will conform to the Chartered Institute of Internal
Auditors’ (CIIA) Code of Ethics. Where members of the Internal Audit team
have attained membership with other professional bodies such as: the
ACCA, AAT or CIPFA, those officers must also comply with their relevant
bodies’ ethical requirements. In addition to this, all Internal Auditors will
have regard to the Standards in Public Life’s “Seven Principles of Public
Life” and the Council’s Code of Conduct.
5.2 The Chief Internal Auditor/Senior Internal Auditor will ensure that the
Internal Audit function remains free from all conditions that threaten the
ability of internal auditors to carry out their responsibilities in an unbiased
manner, including matters of audit selection, scope, procedures,
frequency, timing and report content. If the Chief Internal Auditor/Senior
Internal Auditor determines that independence or objectivity may be
impaired in fact or appearance, the details of the impairment will be
disclosed to appropriate parties.
5.3 Internal Auditors must maintain an unbiased attitude that allows them to
perform engagements objectively and in such a manner that they believe
in their work product, that no quality compromises are made, and that they
do not subordinate their judgement on audit matters to others.
5.4 Internal Auditors will not have any direct operational responsibilities or
authority over any of the activities audited. Accordingly, Internal Auditors
will not implement internal controls, develop procedures, install systems,
prepare records, or engage in any other activity that may impair their
judgment including:





20

Assessing specific operations for which they had responsibility for
within the previous year
Performing any operational duties for Eastleigh Borough Council
Initiating or approving transactions external to the Internal Audit
function
Directing the activities of any Eastleigh Borough Council employee
not employed by the Internal Audit function; except to the extent that
such employees have been appropriately assigned to auditing teams
or to otherwise assist internal auditors.

5.5 Where the Internal Audit team have or is expected to have roles and/or
responsibilities that fall outside of internal auditing, safeguards will be
established to limit impairments to independence or objectivity.
5.6 Internal auditors will:





disclose any impairment of independence or objectivity, in fact or
appearance, to appropriate parties.
exhibit professional objectivity in gathering, evaluating, and
communicating information about the activity or process being
examined.
make balanced assessments of all available and relevant facts and
circumstances.
take necessary precautions to avoid being unduly influenced by their
own interests or by others in forming judgments.

5.7 The Chief Internal Auditor will confirm to the Audit & Resources
Committee, at least annually, the organisational independence of the
internal audit function. The Chief Internal Auditor will disclose to the Audit
& Resources Committee any interference and related implications in
determining the scope of internal auditing, performing work and/or
communicating results.

6. Internal Audit Resources
6.1 For the Internal Audit team to fulfil their responsibilities, the team must be
appropriately staffed in terms of numbers, professional qualifications, skills
and experience. Resources must be effectively deployed to achieve the
approved risk-based plan. The mix of available knowledge, skills and other
competencies will be considered once the risk-based plan is drafted to
ensure they are sufficient to deliver the plan.
6.2 It is the responsibility of the Chief Internal Auditor to report concerns over
a lack of resources to the Chief Financial Officer and to the Audit &
Resources Committee.
6.3 If necessary, the Chief Financial Officer and the Chair of the Audit and
Resources Committee will agree the level of additional and or specialist
resources. Following which, a recommendation will be made to Cabinet
seeking approval.
6.4 Employment of staff will be in compliance with the Council’s Human
Resources policies.
6.5 External resources will be procured in line with the Council’s Financial
Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules. There is a further specific
requirement under the Standards that approval be sought from the Audit
and Resources Committee to engage in any significant additional
consultancy services not already included within the audit plan.

21

6.6 The Chief Internal Auditor should hold a professional qualification (CMIIA,
CIPFA or equivalent) and be suitably experienced. Each job role within the
internal audit structure will detail skills and competencies within the
approved job description and person specification. In line with Council
policy and the Standards, each member of the team will be assessed
against these predetermined competencies and annual objectives through
performance monitoring. Auditors are also required to maintain a record of
their continual professional development in line with their professional
body.

7. Scope of Internal Audit activities
7.1 The scope of internal audit activities encompasses, but is not limited to,
objective examinations of evidence for the purpose of providing
independent assessments to the Audit & Resources Committee,
Management Team, and other stakeholders on the adequacy and
effectiveness of governance, risk management, and control processes for
Eastleigh Borough Council.
7.2 Internal audit assessments include evaluating whether:








Risks relating to the achievement of Eastleigh Borough Council’s
strategic objectives are appropriately identified and managed.
The actions of Eastleigh Borough Council are in compliance with its
policies, procedures, and applicable laws, regulations, and
governance standards.
The results of operations or programs are consistent with established
goals and objectives.
Operations or programs are being carried out effectively and
efficiently.
Established processes and systems enable compliance with the
policies, procedures, laws, and regulations that could significantly
impact Eastleigh Borough Council.
Information and the means used to identify, measure, analyse,
classify, and report such information are reliable and have integrity.
Resources and assets are acquired economically, used efficiently,
and protected adequately.

7.3 The Chief Internal Auditor will report quarterly to senior management and
the Audit and Resources Committee regarding:






22

The internal audit function’s purpose, authority, and responsibility.
The internal audit function’s plan and performance relative to its plan.
The internal audit function’s conformance with The IIA’s Code of
Ethics and Standards, and action plans to address any significant
conformance issues.
Significant risk exposures and control issues, including fraud risks,
governance issues, and other matters requiring the attention of, or
requested by, the Audit & Resources Committee.
Results of audit engagements or other activities.




Resource requirements.
Any response to risk by management that may be unacceptable.

7.4 The Chief Internal Auditor also coordinates activities, where possible, and
considers relying upon the work of other internal and external assurance
and consulting service providers as needed. The internal audit function
may perform advisory activities, the nature and scope of which will be
agreed with the accountable officer, provided the internal audit function
does not assume management responsibility.
7.5 Opportunities for improving the efficiency of governance, risk
management, and control processes may be identified during
engagements. These opportunities will be communicated to the
appropriate level of management.
7.6 A range of internal audit services are provided (annex 1) to form the Chief
Internal Auditor’s annual opinion. The approach is determined by the Chief
Internal Auditor and will depend on the level of assurance required, the
significance of the objectives under review relative to the Council’s
success, the risks inherent in the achievement of objectives and the level
of confidence required that controls are well designed and operating as
intended.

8.

Fraud
Internal Audit has a role in the prevention, detection and investigation of
fraud. Internal Auditors will plan and evaluate their work so as to have a
reasonable expectation of detecting fraud and identifying any significant
weaknesses in internal controls. Internal Audit will provide independent
assurance on the effectiveness of the processes put in place by
management to manage the risk of fraud.

8.1 The Chief Internal Auditor is responsible for ensuring Internal Audit
planned work includes time for pro-active counter fraud activities through
the development of an Annual Fraud Action Plan. Progress will be
reported annually to the Audit and Resources Committee through the
Corporate Fraud Report.

9. Responsibility
Chief Internal Auditor
9.1 The Chief Internal Auditor has the responsibility to:




Submit, at least annually, to Corporate Leadership Board and the
Audit and Resources Committee a risk-based internal audit plan for
review and approval and an Internal Audit Charter.
Communicate to Corporate Leadership Board and the Audit and
Resources Committee the impact of resource limitations on the
internal audit plan.
Review and adjust the internal audit plan, as necessary, in response
to changes in Eastleigh Borough Council’s business, risks,
operations, programmes, systems, and controls.

23


















Communicate to Corporate Leadership Board and the Audit and
Resources Committee any significant interim changes to the internal
audit plan for review and approval.
Communicate to Corporate Leadership Board and the Audit and
Resources Committee quarterly on internal audit performance
relative to its plan and other matters.
Produce annually an Annual Internal Audit Opinion and report
providing a conclusion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of
the Council’s framework of governance, risk management and
control that can be used by the Council to inform its governance
statement.
Ensure each engagement of the internal audit plan is executed,
including the establishment of objectives and scope, the assignment
of appropriate and adequately supervised resources, the
documentation of work programs and testing results, and the
communication of engagement results with applicable conclusions
and recommendations to appropriate parties.
Follow up on engagement findings and corrective actions, and report
quarterly to Corporate Leadership Board and the Audit and
Resources Committee any corrective actions (high risk
recommendations) not effectively implemented.
Ensure the principles of integrity, objectivity, confidentiality, and
competency are applied and upheld.
Ensure the internal audit function collectively possesses or obtains
the knowledge, skills, and other competencies needed to meet the
requirements of the internal audit charter.
Ensure trends and emerging issues that could impact the Council are
considered and communicated to Corporate Leadership Board and
the Audit and Resources Committee as appropriate.
Ensure emerging trends and successful practices in internal auditing
are considered.
Establish and ensure adherence to policies and procedures
designed to guide the internal audit function.
Ensure adherence to the Council’s relevant policies and procedures
unless such policies and procedures conflict with the internal audit
charter. Any such conflicts will be resolved or otherwise
communicated to Corporate Leadership Board and the Audit and
Resources Committee.
Promote an anti-fraud and anti-money laundering culture.

Executive Leadership Team
9.2 As those responsible for the leadership and direction of the Council it is
imperative that the Executive Leadership Team are engaged in:




24

Approving the Internal Audit Charter annually
Approving the risk-based internal audit plan
Receiving communications from the Chief Internal Auditor on the
internal audit’s performance relative to its plan and other matters.




Making appropriate enquiries of the Chief Internal Auditor to
determine whether there are inappropriate scope and resource
limitations
Receiving the results of internal and external assessments of the
quality assurance and improvement programme, including areas of
non-conformance.

Audit and Resources Committee
9.3 Organisational independence is effectively achieved when the Chief
Internal Auditor reports functionally to the Audit and Resources
Committee. Such reporting will include:








Approving the Internal Audit Charter annually
Approving the risk-based Internal Audit Plan
Receiving communications from the Chief Internal Auditor on the
internal audit’s performance relative to its plan and other matters.
Making appropriate enquiries of management and the Chief Internal
Auditor to determine whether there are inappropriate scope and
resource limitations
Receiving the results of internal and external assessments of the
quality assurance and improvement programme, including areas of
non-conformance.
Approval of significant consulting services not already included in the
audit plan, prior to the acceptance of the engagement.
Approval of the application of audit days included in the internal audit
plan for member requested reviews/scrutiny is utilised, prior to the
acceptance of the engagement.

10. Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme
10.1 The internal audit function will maintain a quality assurance and
improvement programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit
activity. The program will include an evaluation of the internal audit
function’s conformance with the Standards and an evaluation of whether
internal auditors apply The IIA’s Code of Ethics. The program will also
assess the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit team/activity
and identify opportunities for improvement.
10.2 The Chief Internal Auditor will communicate to senior management and
the Audit and Resources Committee on the internal audit function’s quality
assurance and improvement programme, including results of internal
assessments (both ongoing and periodic) and external assessments
conducted at least once every five years by a qualified, independent
assessor or assessment team. This arrangement and scope must be
agreed with the Chief Financial Officer, Audit and Resources Committee,
and the Independent Assessor. This arrangement will be met through
reciprocal arrangement with another local authority.

25

11. Review of the Internal Audit Charter
11.1 This Charter will be reviewed annually (minimum) by the Chief Internal
Auditor and presented to Executive Leadership Team and the Audit and
Resources Committee for approval.

26

Annex 1
Eastleigh Borough Councils’ Internal Audit function can provide:


Assurance reviews – where risks and controls associated with the
mitigation of that risk are assessed and tested to determine any residual
risk to the achievement of objectives. Recommendations will be made
where appropriate and an audit opinion will be provided. Further details
of the grading of recommendations and categories of opinion can be
found in Annex 2



Compliance reviews – ensuring compliance with legislation and
standards either as part of assurance assignments or separate limited
review



IT Audit reviews – specialist review of the IT control environment
(specialist resource procured)



Consultancy engagements – where advice and support can be
provided either informally through discussion or formally through
providing reports. It should be noted that it is not appropriate for an
Internal Auditor to become involved in establishing or implementing
controls or assuming any operational responsibility. Any advisory work
performed must not prejudice the scope, objectivity and quality of future
audit work.



System development reviews – providing assurance during the
development of new systems that adequate controls have been
developed; system testing and training is sufficient, data integrity is not
impaired, system documentation is sufficient and that the needs of the
user have been met



Process improvement – identifying process improvements through
either adhoc reviews or through planned audit engagements.



Fraud & irregularity reviews – Internal Audit may provide specialist
skills to lead or assist in fraud or irregularity investigations. Internal
Audit’s role in this is outlined in the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption
Policy.



Project management reviews & support – post implementation
reviews as requested by Management Team performed in conjunction
with the Project Management Office



Contract management reviews - sign off on contract final accounts.



Value for money – review of arrangements e.g. Partnerships, to ensure
value for money is being achieved



Governance support - inputting in the drafting of the Annual
Governance Statement

27

Annex 2
Internal Audit – Assurance Methodology
Opinion
1. For each internal audit assignment, we arrive at a conclusion that
assesses the audit assurance in one of four categories. These will arise
from:
 Our assessment of the controls that are in place and;
 Our assessment of compliance with these controls.
Level

Control Assessment
There are no controls in
place.

Compliance Assessment
There is no compliance with
controls.

Limited

Significant weaknesses in
controls exist.

Adequate

There are opportunities to
improve controls.

There is a significant level of
non-compliance with
controls.
There is non-compliance with
some of the controls.

Substantial

There are robust controls in
place.

There is compliance with
controls.

Nil

Recommendations
2. Recommendations are graded to assist management with prioritising
implementation as follows:
Priority

28

Explanation

1
(Critical risk)

A major or serious control weakness as a key control is
either missing, failing or not being adhered to which
requires immediate action and exposes the Council to a
critical risk.

2
(High risk)

A significant control weakness as a key control is either
missing, not working or not being adhered to and
exposes the Council to a high risk.

3
(Medium Risk)

An issue which needs to be corrected to ensure controls
are adequate or operating effectively or to improve
compliance which exposes the Council to a medium risk.

4
(Low Risk)

An opportunity to improve the controls or strengthen
compliance although this does not expose the Council to
any critical or significant risk.

Agenda Item 7
AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Tuesday 8 March 2022
STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022/23
Report of the Corporate Director (Chief Financial Officer) & Chief
Internal Auditor (Acting)
RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23 be approved.

Summary
This report presents the Strategic Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23 (Appendix 1). The
Strategic Internal Audit Plan has been prepared on behalf of the Chief Financial
Officer in recognition of her responsibilities under S.151 of the Local Government Act
1972 and the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015, and in accordance with the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017.

Statutory Powers
S151 Local Government Act 1972
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015

Strategic Implications
1.

The Internal Audit Team provides independent assurance that the Council’s
risk management, governance and control processes are efficient, compliant,
work effectively and support ambitions of the Council.

Strategic Internal Audit Plan
2.

Appendix 1 of this report presents to Councillors the Strategic Internal Audit
Plan for 2022/23, which members of this Committee are asked to approve.

Finance/Risk Implications
3.

There are no financial implications arising from this report. The report is
intended to highlight the audit coverage over the next year. The work
performed by the Internal Audit Section provides management with a good
degree of assurance that their risks, identified by the reviews, are adequately
controlled or identifies where they may require strengthening.

Equality & Diversity Implications
4.

The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report and an Equality
Impact Assessment has not been carried out.

29

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
5.

There are no Climate Change and Environmental implications as a result of
this report. It is a report dealing with Internal Audit procedural matters only.

Conclusion
6.

The Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 has been prepared in accordance
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, following a comprehensive
need and risk assessment and consultation.

7.

Members of this Committee will continue to receive an update on performance
against the Annual Plan by way of Quarterly Monitoring Statements.
LISA SMY - ACTING CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR

Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:
*Report No

15 February 2022
Lisa Smy
023 8068 8015
lisa.smy@eastleigh.gov.uk
One
Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 – SECTION 100D
The following documents disclose facts or matters on which this report or an
important part of it is based, and have been relied upon to a material extent in the
preparation of this report.



30

Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2022/23
Internal Audit Charter 2022/23

INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGIC PLAN
2022/23

Contents
Introduction
Conformance with Standards
Council Risk & the Audit Universe
Internal Audit Resources
Developing the Internal Audit Plan
Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2022/23
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 2
Page 2
Page 2
Page 3
Page 3
Page 6
Page 8

Appendices:
Annex One – Risk Based Strategy
Annex Two – Audit Opinion & Gradings (Assurance Methodology)

Page 10
Page 11

Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) – Lisa Smy

31

Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2022/23

Introduction
1. The role of Internal Audit is best summarised through its definition within the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) as:
“an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add
value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and
governance processes”.
2. The Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk
management processes, control systems, accounting records and
governance arrangements. Internal audit plays a vital role in advising the
Council that these arrangements are in place and operating effectively. The
Council’s response to internal audit activity should lead to the strengthening
of the control environment and therefore contribute to the achievement of the
organisation’s objectives.
3. The aim of Internal Audit’s work programme is to provide independent and
objective assurance to management, in relation to the business, activities,
systems or processes under review that:



the framework of internal control, risk management and governance is
appropriate and operating effectively; and
risk to the achievement of the Council’s objectives is identified, assessed
and managed to a defined acceptable level.

4. The Internal Audit Plan provides the mechanism through which the Chief
Internal Auditor can ensure most appropriate use of internal audit resources
to provide a clear statement of assurance on risk management, internal
control and governance arrangements.
5. A copy of the assurance methodology can be found in annex 2.
Conformance with Standards
6. The Strategic Internal Audit Plan has been prepared in recognition of the
responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer under S.151 of the Local
Government Act 1972 and the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 and in
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017 (the
Standards).
Council Risk & the Audit Universe
7. The Standards require the Chief Internal Auditor to develop and maintain a
risk-based strategy for delivering the internal audit service. The risk strategy
methodology can be found in annex 1.
2

32

Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2022/23

8. Following the introduction of a new Executive Head structure in January
2021, the service planning process has been reviewed and Executive and
Service Plans aligned to the new structure. There are 9 Executive plans for
each of the executive areas to support the Corporate Strategy and the 10
corporate objectives. Supporting the plans there is a Corporate Risk Register
and an Operational Risk Register. The Risk Registers are fundamental to the
development of the Internal Audit Plan. The Chief Internal Auditor will monitor
the risk registers closely over the course of the year to ensure the plan
remains agile to the rapidly changing landscape.
9. The Audit Universe identifies the main auditable areas within the Council.
This is kept under regular review and updated to reflect new ways of working.
Each auditable area is risk assessed annually as part of the planning process
and a risk factor is applied to as summarised below (see annex 1 for risk
strategy methodology). The audit cycle is indicative and will be dependent on
resource capacity.




High – audit every 2-3 years
Medium – audit on a cyclical basis every 3-5 years.
Low – audit on a non-cyclical basis based on a continued assessment of
risk.

Internal Audit Resources
10. It is expected that for 2022/23 the team will consist of the Chief Internal
Auditor (currently vacant and being covered by the Senior Internal Auditor),
Senior Internal Auditor (1.0 FTE, fixed term contract for 12 months from
August 2022), Internal Auditors (1.3 FTE – 1 FTE permanent, 0.3 casual) and
an Internal Audit Apprentice (1.0 FTE).
Developing the Internal Audit Plan
11. To ensure that the Audit Plan is aligned to the Corporate Strategy, Service
Plans, and Risk Management Framework and that it continues to add value,
consultation took place with the Executive Leadership Team.
12. Based on the conversations with key stakeholders, review of key corporate
documents and risk registers, along with the Team’s understanding of the
organisation, a three-year Strategic Internal Audit Plan and an Annual
Internal Audit Plan for the coming year have been developed. It should be
noted that the plan has been designed to be fluid.
13. During the year dialogue with key stakeholders will continue to ensure that
the plan reflects the needs of the Council.
14. The Council is reminded that internal audit is only one source of assurance
and through the delivery of our plan we will not, and do not seek to cover all
risks and processes within the organisation.
3

33

Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2022/23

15. In compiling the plan the following was considered:


Any audit not completed as part of the Annual Plan for 2021/22 has been
reassessed for risk and incorporated into the 3-year Strategic Internal
Audit Plan.



A review of the Audit Universe was carried out and the following changes
were made:
New reviews
o HRA Housing Revenue Account



A review of key control areas (major systems) which are key internal
control systems and are specifically defined as being those that control the
Council’s collection and paymaster functions and the associated corporate
accounting arrangements are reviewed biennially and require a resource
of 75 days.



A total of 26 days has been included in the Plan for Corporate Governance
reviews which includes input into the Annual Governance Statement,
Business Continuity Planning, Local Government Transparency Agenda,
Partnership Arrangements and the Quality Assessment and Improvement
Programme (QAIP) for Internal Audit.



The IT element of the Plan will continue to be resourced internally and 20
days has been included in the plan for 2022/23. Where appropriate,
reliance will be placed on the work of external consultants to avoid any
duplication of efforts.



10 days has been made available for Councillors to request a review
during the year which is high risk and is not covered elsewhere in the plan.
Agreement of the Chair of Audit and Resources Committee will be sought
prior to any review commencing.



20 days is included in the plan for consultancy and value for money
reviews which will determined through the year as a result of corporate
performance monitoring. Internal Audit will work closely with Performance
and Governance to align work, avoid duplication and improve processes.



A contingency of 20 days is included within the Plan to cover special
investigations and other Counter Fraud arrangements not specifically
provided for. Investigations into potentially fraudulent activities will always
be undertaken as a matter of priority.



20 days has also been included within the Plan to cover the transition of
work between 2021/22 and 2022/23 and a provision of 20 days has also
been made for demand-led activity (Help & Advice). Past experience has
indicated that these contingencies are likely to be fully utilised.



An additional 20 days has been included in the plan for supporting the
ongoing response to the COVID-19 19 pandemic.

16. In developing the plan, it must also be recognised that Internal Audit are
integral to the review of systems, processes and procedures that are being
undertaken and whilst the Standards are specific in identifying the
4

34

Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2022/23

requirements of the planning process, there is also a need to maintain
flexibility within the plan. Both the plan and the associated risk assessment
will be kept under regular review and updated as the results of audit work are
finalised, new systems are developed, the external review of the Internal
Audit function is completed, and other factors arise which may affect
organisational priorities. As a result, the plan will remain fluid and some work
may be accelerated, and other work may attract a lower priority.

5

35

Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2022/23

Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2022/23
17. Based on the above principles, the risk factor, consideration of current and
new initiatives during the forthcoming year and liaison with key stakeholders,
the Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 is shown in the table below.
18. This Plan is endorsed by the Corporate Director (Chief Financial Officer) and
the Chief Internal Auditor as being sound, robust and sufficient to safeguard
the Council’s internal control framework and sufficient to enable the Chief
Internal Auditor to produce an Annual Assurance Statement.
2021/22
Agreed days
MAJOR SYSTEMS
CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
CORPORATE SUPPORT
CORPORATE SYSTEMS
Finance and Housing
Programme
Assets and Project
Delivery
Governance
Customer Care
Organisational and
Strategic Development
Environment
Health & Wellbeing
Planning and Economy
Neighbourhood Services
CONTRACT AUDIT
MEMBERS SCRUTINY
INVESTIGATIONS/
CONTINGENCY/
COUNTER FRAUD
CONSULTANCY
PRIOR YEAR END
COMPLETION
HELP & ADVICE
COVID-19 SUPPORT
TOTAL DAYS
Internal house resource
Casual resource*
TOTAL DAYS
Variance

130
26

2022/23
PLANNED
DAYS
75
26

109
20
20

115
30
35

20

30

35
15
30

55
15
50

10
8
15
30
6
10
20

15
10
10
64
10
10
20

20
20

20
20

20
20
584
491
93
584
0

20
20
650
650
650
0

19. The Annual Internal Audit Plan provides the mechanism through which the
6

36

Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2022/23

Chief Internal Auditor can ensure most appropriate use of internal audit
resources to provide a clear statement of assurance on risk management,
internal control and governance arrangements. Detailed below is the Annual
Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23.

7

37

Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2022/23

Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23

AUDIT UNIVERSE

RISK INDEX
H=High
M=Medium
L=Low

2022/23
PLANNED AUDIT DAYS

(see appendix 1)

Major Financial Systems
Accounting System
Accounting for Fixed Assets
Budgetary control
Treasury Management
Cash Collection & Banking
Bank Reconciliation
Accounts Receivable (Debtors)
Accounts Payable (Creditors)
Payroll
Local Taxation
Housing Benefit & Council Tax Support
Contingency
Sub total
Corporate Governance
Annual Governance Statement
Internal review of Audit
External review of Audit
Follow up of Audit Recommendations
Local Government Transparency Agenda
Sub total
Corporate Support
Audit Liaison
Prevention of Fraud & Corruption
National Fraud Initiative
IT System Development/Implementation
Corporate Risk Management Group
Procurement Executive Group
ICT Security Group
Change and Improvement Board
Other Programme Boards/Project Groups
Election Support
Sub total
Corporate Systems
Enforcement (various statutory functions)
Business Continuity Planning
Management Agreements (various
contract arrangements)
Time & Attendance System
Strategic Planning
Grant Funding (various applications for
funding)

H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
H
-

15
15
10

20

15
75

-

2
5
2
15
2
26

-

10
50
15
15
2
2
2
2
2
15
115

H
H
M

10
10
10

M
H
M
8

38

Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2022/23

AUDIT UNIVERSE

RISK INDEX
H=High
M=Medium
L=Low

2022/23
PLANNED AUDIT DAYS

(see appendix 1)

Markets
Sub total
Finance & Housing Programme
Housing Development (Transactions)
One Horton Heath
Community Investment Programme
Taxation – VAT & Sub Contractors
Authorised Signatories
Corporate Credit Card
Petty Cash
Cheque security & control
HRA Housing Revenue Account
Sub total
Assets and Project Delivery
Asset Management
Asset Maintenance
Commercial Rents
Facilities Management
Health & Safety (inc’ Events
Management/CDM)
Project Management/PIR Controls
Sub total
Governance
Insurance – Management & Administration
Corporate Governance
Risk Management
Procurement Arrangements
Contract & Partnership Management
Information Legislation (Data
Protection/FOI)
Records and Information Management
Legal Fees
Licensing – SCC Partnership
Election Expenses
Electoral Registration
Members Allowances
Sub total
Customer Care
Case Management
Customer Complaints & Compliments
Controlled Stationery
Print Unit (Glass Box)
Sub total
Organisational and Strategic Development

L
30
H
H
H
H
M
M
L
L
H

10
10
10
5

35
H
H
H
H
H

10
10
10

H
30
H
H
H
H
H
M

10
10

M
M
M
M
M
L

5
10
10
10
55

H
M
L
L

10
5
15
9

39

Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2022/23

AUDIT UNIVERSE

RISK INDEX
H=High
M=Medium
L=Low

2022/23
PLANNED AUDIT DAYS

(see appendix 1)

Safeguarding – Children and Vulnerable
Adults
ICT Service Delivery & Management
Business Applications
IT Infrastructure
Corporate Performance Management
Community Grants
Community Safety
Recruitment & Selection
Training & Development
Sickness Absence Monitoring
Employee Performance Management
Travel, subsistence, officer expenses
Social Media Policy
Marketing
Community Engagement
Car & Travel Loans
Sponsorship (all) & Advertising Income
Communications & Civic/Mayoralty
Sub total
Environment
Climate & Environmental Strategy
Tree Stock Management
Environmental Licencing & Food (inc’
Private Rented Accommodation)
Environmental Nuisance
Countryside Land Management (all parks)
Car Club
Sub total
Health & Wellbeing
Hampshire Home Choice
Homelessness
Tenancy Start Up /Top Up Rent
Housing Grants & DFGs
The Point & The Berry (Business &
Operations)
Arts Development (inc. Youth Theatre)
Country Parks Operations
Hire of Community Facilities
Healthworks/Park Sports
Sub total
Planning and Economy
Developers’ Contributions
Planning Fees

H
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
L
L
L

5
10
5

10

10
5
5

50
H
H
M

5

M
M
L

10
15

M
M
M
M
M

10

M
M
L
L
10
H
M
10

40

Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2022/23

AUDIT UNIVERSE

RISK INDEX
H=High
M=Medium
L=Low

2022/23
PLANNED AUDIT DAYS

(see appendix 1)

Land Charges
Building Control Fees
Economic Development
Wessex House
Sub total
Neighbourhood Services
Fleet Management
Commercial Waste
Waste Management (Residual &
Recycling)
Garden Waste System
Street Scene
Pest Control
Small works
Vehicle Workshop
Car Parks
Residents Permits
Civil Parking Enforcement
CCTV
Traffic Management
Allotments
Cemeteries
Sub total
Contract Audit
Members Scrutiny
Consultancy/Improvement (VFM)
Investigations/Contingency
Prior Year Audit Completion
Help and Advice
Covid-19 Support
Total Audit Days

M
M
M
M

10

10
H
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
L
L

-

10

5

8
10
10
10
5
3
3
64
10
10
20
20
20
20
20
650

11

41

Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2022/23

Appendix 1
Internal Audit - Risk Based Strategy 2022/23
The Audit Universe details the main auditable areas across Eastleigh Borough Council. The
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017 (PSIAS 2017) require the Executive Head of
Governance (Head of Internal Audit HIA) to establish risk-based plans to determine the
priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals.
“The HIA is responsible for developing a risk-based plan. The HIA takes into account the
organisation’s risk management framework, including using risk appetite levels set by
management for the different activities or parts of the organisation. If a framework does not
exist, the HIA uses their own judgement of the risks after consideration or input from senior
management and the Audit & Resources Committee. The HIA must review and adjust the
plan, as necessary, in response to changes in the organisation’s business, risks, operations,
programmes, systems and controls.” Source PSIAS 2017.
Each year the Head of Internal Audit carries out a Risk Assessment of each auditable area
which assists in determining the audit coverage for that coming year. The Internal Audit Plan
is then presented to the Audit & Resources Committee for approval in March each year.
The risk assessment is split into 4 areas; Corporate Priority, Control Environment
assessment, Financial risk score and Reputational risk score. This is determined by the
Head of Internal Audit’s assessment with input from responsible officers, Audit & Resources
Committee and External Audit alongside a review of Risk Registers. For any new auditable
areas the control environment will be given a mid-range score of 2.
Corporate Priority
High
Medium
Low
Financial Risk
High
Medium
Low

Score
3
2
1
Score
3
2
1

Control Environment
Poor
Average
Good
Reputational Risk
High
Medium
Low

Score
3
2
1
Score
3
2
1

Each audit is risked assessed using the 4 areas above and the score is combined to give an
overall score. This score will determine if the audit is risked as high, medium or low as
shown below:
Overall score:
Score
5 or less

Risk
Low risk

Score 6-8
Score 9+

Medium risk
High risk

Audit frequency
Audit on a non-cyclical basis based on a continued
assessment of risk
audit on a cyclical basis every 3-5 years
audit every 2-3 years

12

42

Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2022/23

Appendix 2
Internal Audit – Assurance Methodology
Opinion
1. For each internal audit assignment, we assess the framework of control for the
activity under review based on our audit findings and arrive at a conclusion that
assesses the audit assurance in one of four categories. These will arise from:
 Our assessment of the controls that are in place and;
 Our assessment of compliance with these controls.
Level

Control Assessment
There are no controls in place.

Compliance Assessment
There is no compliance with
controls.

Limited

Significant weaknesses in
controls exist.

There is a significant level of
non-compliance with controls.

Adequate

There are opportunities to
improve controls.

There is non-compliance with
some of the controls.

Substantial

There are robust controls in
place.

There is compliance with
controls.

Nil

Recommendations
2. Recommendations are graded to assist management with prioritising
implementation as follows:
Priority
1
(Critical risk)

2
(High risk)

3
(Medium Risk)

4
(Low Risk)

Explanation
A major or serious control weakness as a key control is
either missing, failing or not being adhered to which requires
immediate action and exposes the Council to a critical risk.
A significant control weakness as a key control is either
missing, not working or not being adhered to and exposes
the Council to a high risk.
An issue which needs to be corrected to ensure controls are
adequate or operating effectively or to improve compliance
which exposes the Council to a medium risk.
An opportunity to improve the controls or strengthen
compliance although this does not expose the Council to
any critical or significant risk.

13

43

This page is intentionally left blank

EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL
FORWARD PLAN: February 2022 to March 2022
This Forward Plan sets out matters which may be considered by Cabinet in the four month period. It includes items on which a “key
decision” is likely to be taken.
A KEY DECISION IS - An executive decision (whether or not taken by the Cabinet) which is likely to:
(1)

result in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which amount to either £50,000 or 20% (whichever is the
larger) of the gross expenditure budget for the service or general function to which the decision relates; or

(2)

be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the
Borough of Eastleigh.

The Plan also includes matters for likely decision relating to the Council’s policy or budget framework.
KEY

ITEM

TO BE
TAKEN BY

DATE
DECISION TO
BE TAKEN

Cabinet

24 Mar 2022

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION

Contact Officer /
Cabinet Member

The Council has legal duties
and a community leadership
role in the exercise of its
functions to address
discrimination, promote
genuine equal opportunities
and foster good relations
between different
communities in Eastleigh
Borough. The Strategy and
Action Plan proposes a plan
to improve consideration of
equalities in the workforce,
services and projects of the
Council.

Andrew
Saunders,
Strategy
Development
Senior Specialist
/

24 March 2022
Yes

Equalities Strategy and Action
Plan 2022-2025

Agenda Item 8

45

46

KEY

ITEM

TO BE
TAKEN BY

DATE
DECISION TO
BE TAKEN

Yes

Freeport Full Business Case

Cabinet

24 Mar 2022

Yes

Tree Strategy

Cabinet

24 Mar 2022

Yes

ELAC Allotment Transfers

Cabinet

24 Mar 2022

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

Policy &
Performance
Scrutiny Panel

DESCRIPTION

Contact Officer /
Cabinet Member

The Freeport site has
progressed to submitting the
Full Business Case to
Government for approval
and creation of the Freeport
Tax Sites. This report details
key aspects of the business
case and the Council’s
obligations from it.

Andy Smith,
Executive Head
of Finance and
Housing
Programme
(Deputy Chief
Financial Officer),
Andy Grandfield,
Executive Head
of Planning and
Economy /

The Strategy outlines the
Council’s current activities
relating to trees, provides a
framework to underpin these
activities and sets the
Council’s key principles in
relation to trees.

Mike Culver,
Strategy
Development
Senior Specialist
/

Report detailing the statutory
and non-statutory allotments
to be transferred on 1st April
2022 as part of the creation
of two new parish councils –
Boyatt Wood Parish and
Eastleigh Parish.

Nicola Treeby /

2

KEY

ITEM

TO BE
TAKEN BY

DATE
DECISION TO
BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION

Contact Officer /
Cabinet Member

Yes

Corporate Complaints Policy

Cabinet

24 Mar 2022

Asking that Cabinet approve
the revised and updated
Corporate Complaints and
Compliments Policy and
Approves the Unreasonably
Persistent Complainants and
Unreasonable Customer
Behaviour Policy.

Louise O'Driscoll,
Executive Head
of Customer
Care /

Yes

Joint Municipal Waste
Management Strategy
(JMWMS)

Cabinet

24 Mar 2022

An updated JMWMS that
needs to be agreed by
Cabinet.

Gale Smith,
Project Manager
- Waste /

Yes

Response to Hampshire County
Council consultation on
application to extract gravel at
former Hamble Airfield

Cabinet

24 Mar 2022

This report seeks formal
approval of the Council’s
response to the HCC
consultation as the planning
authority in conjunction with
the response agreed at BHH
LAC on 3rd March.

Diccon Bright,
Strategic
Planning
Manager /

Yes

Community Investment
Programme Scheme(s)
Approval

Cabinet

24 Mar 2022

To consider and approve
projects within the
Community Investment
Programme (CIP).

/

47

3

48

KEY

ITEM

TO BE
TAKEN BY

DATE
DECISION TO
BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION

Contact Officer /
Cabinet Member

Yes

Housing Acceleration Funding

Cabinet

24 Mar 2022

Funding to accelerate the
delivery of a development
site by a small local
developer.

Andy Smith,
Executive Head
of Finance and
Housing
Programme
(Deputy Chief
Financial Officer)
/

Yes

Green Energy Development
Projects

Cabinet

24 Mar 2022

This report seeks Cabinet
approval for capital funding,
and support for associated
projects and actions, for the
long-term development of
new renewable energy
assets in the north of the
Borough.

Emily Howbrook,
Strategy Led
(Housing and
Development) /

Yes

Property Transactions

Cabinet

24 Mar 2022

To consider and approve
property transactions.

/

FOOTNOTES:
Public Participation will apply to enable representations to be made at the time the decision is to be taken.
Written reports for public items will be available as part of the agenda papers and are usually available one week prior to
the meeting.
Contact Officer:
Publication Date:

Laura Johnston – Democratic Services Manager
25 February 2022

4

Agenda Item 9
AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME
AS AT January 2022
Date of
Meeting

Item for Consideration

Annual or
Standing
item

Staff/Member
Attendance

To Be Tabled

Hampshire Community Bank

Sarah King

Internal Audit Charter 2022/23
Internal Audit Strategic Plan 2022/23
Property Transactions
Staffing Report

Lisa Smy
Lisa Smy
Sarah King
Shirley Robbins
Sukhi Aujla

8 March 2022

Annual

Action Plan
Forward Plan
A&R Work Programme

49

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 8 March 2022
UPDATE ON STAFFING MATTERS 2021
Report of the Human Resources Lead

Recommendation(s)
It is recommended that Audit and Resources Committee consider the contents of
this report and makes recommendations as it feels necessary.

Summary
This report provides a summary of the key workforce data and analysis over the last 12
months together with an update on the People Strategy.

Focus for Scrutiny
This annual review is a summary of initiatives and practices supported by data analysis
with regard to people management. The Committee is asked to note the report and to
make any comments or recommendations.

Statutory Powers
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 111 / 112

1

Strategic Implications

This report provides key data, analysis and updates on the Council’s workforce and
people management practices. The Council recognises the importance of recruiting,
developing and retaining a skilled and motivated workforce so it can continue to
deliver good quality services and achieve its aspirations. The Council also needs to
ensure that it is engaging with its workforce in a way that promotes continuous
improvement, innovation and commercial success whilst fulfilling its statutory
obligations.

2

Introduction

The format of this report for 2021 will show changes from previous reports following
the implementation of the Executive Head structure in early 2021 and the recruitment
of 9 Executive Heads and the creation of their respective new Executive areas. It
may not be possible therefore to directly compare some of the data with historical

51

reports. It is also important to note that a lot of HR resources were allocated in 2021
to embedding the new Executive Head structure, updating systems, changing
processes and approvals, creating organisational structure charts and revising
policies and processes to reflect the new structure.
Improvements have also been made to this report following feedback received at last
year’s Audit and Resources Committee with additional data and graphics included.
The coronavirus pandemic continues to impact the operation of the Council. A large
section of our workforce has continued to work in a hybrid manner throughout 2021,
with many largely home-based whilst our customer-facing front line services have
continued to work in a traditional manner.

3

Future Ways of Working

Throughout 2020 a number of short staff surveys were circulated to give us a better
understanding of the wellbeing of #TeamEBC staff particularly in the context of the
pandemic and working from home.
The last survey in November 2020 established that the majority of employees
preferred to work in a more hybrid way, with a mix of homeworking and the ability to
spend time with their colleagues in the workplace from time to time.
A working group was subsequently formed in 2021 to consider the results of these
surveys in relation to future ways of working at Eastleigh. The working group met
throughout 2021 to formulate plans and actions. As a result, a more formal trial of
hybrid working began in October 2021 for those employees who were largely officebased. This trial enabled employees to work from home and also spend time in the
office, either in “open spaces” to work alongside colleagues, or in an area dedicated
to team-working (i.e., for teams to book together for team meetings, team
collaboration). Due to government regulations and the recommendation to “work
from home where you can” in late 2021 this trial was suspended and resumed in late
January 2022 in accordance with the revised government advice and guidance. The
trial is scheduled to last for a total period of 6 months following which the outcome
will be reviewed and will inform the Council’s future ways of working.

4

Key Workforce Data

4.1

Total number of staff as at December 2021



Total head count:

562 (549 Jan 2021)



Fixed term headcount:

57 (40 Jan 2021)



Permanent full time equivalent (FTE):

507.03 (461.14 Jan 2021)



Casual employees

64 (79 Jan 2021)

There has been a small overall increase in our total headcount in the past year. This
increase in posts has mostly been in the Planning & Economy executive area and
the creation of the Executive Head roles.

52

Eastleigh Borough Council

There has been an increase in fixed term contract posts specifically within the
Planning & Economy executive area, namely, the Employment Hub Manager,
Employment Support Officers and Information Officers which are externally funded
posts. There was also an increase in Case Management Officer roles and Assistant
Countryside Officers.
The majority of the casual employees engaged by the Council work at The
Point/Berry Theatres and Itchen Valley Country Park Woodland Café. Due to the
seasonal nature of these venues, there will continue to be some requirement to
utilise casual staff to manage peaks and troughs in usage throughout the year. There
has been a reduction in the overall number of casual workers following a review
during the pandemic and following furlough. Steps have been taken to reduce the
reliance upon casual workers.

4.2

Turnover

Employee turnover refers to the percentage of employees who leave the
organisation and are replaced by new employees. Whilst some turnover is good, if
turnover is too high there is an increased adverse impact on costs, stability, training
requirements, knowledge management and management time.
Overall Turnover (1 Jan 2021 – 31 December 2021)
Voluntary

14.8%

Voluntary Over two years’ service

9.8%

Involuntary

1.3%

The voluntary turnover rate for EBC was 14.8% in 2021. This relates to those who
have resigned. If involuntary leavers are included, this rate is 16.1%. Involuntary
leavers refers to those who have left for reasons such as redundancy, end of fixed
term contract or by dismissal for any reason. The majority of voluntary turnover is
amongst staff with over two years’ service. The average years of service for
voluntary was 7 years and involuntary was 10 years.
Turnover rates in the UK historically average around 15%. The latest data from Xpert
HR which is based on data from a survey taken in 2020 showed an annual turnover
rate of around 14.6%. In comparison, the average public sector turnover rate is
15.8% according to XpertHR/Survey analysis (2 November 2021).
As a result, largely of the coronavirus pandemic, “The Great Resignation” (also
known as “the big quit”) is an economic trend that began in early 2021 and describes
the phenomenon where record numbers of employees leave their jobs having reevaluated their careers. Organisations are faced with having to navigate the ripple
effects of the pandemic and re-evaluate options to retain talent. The job market is
exceptionally buoyant and employers are seeing the strain of high volumes of
vacancies and supply of resources not meeting demand. Eastleigh is not alone in
finding it increasingly difficult to recruit in some areas and our turnover rates are
beginning to increase.
Eastleigh Borough Council

53

The Office for National Statistics (ONS) reported that from June to August 2021,
there continued to be a large growth in job vacancies available (249,000 above
pandemic levels from Jan – March 2021). The number of job vacancies in June to
August 2021 was 1,034,000, which is the first-time vacancies have risen over 1
million since records began. The Chartered Institute of Personal and Development
(CIPD) also found that recruitment intentions are set to increase in all sectors in
2021, so there is increased competition for recruiting workforce and retaining staff.
The graph below shows our turnover broken down by Executive area in 2021 which
confirms the highest turnover is within Planning & Economy. It is commonly known
that there is a skills shortage in the economy which in turn leads to pressure on
salaries and increasingly competitive salaries being offered by our competitors to
attract qualified and experienced staff.

Percentage of turnover

Turnover - 1 January 2021 - 31 December 2021
25.0%
20.0%
15.0%
10.0%
5.0%
0.0%

Voluntary

4.3

Voluntary 2+ years’ service

Involuntary

Leavers by Reason

For 2021, there were a total of 83 leavers across the Council, compared to 52
leavers in 2020. Leavers’ information is shown within the chart and table below: -

54

Eastleigh Borough Council

Leaver by reason - voluntary (1 Jan 21- 31 Dec 21)

Career Opportunities
Retirement
Less Stress or Travel

Change of career path
End of contract
Performance

Eastleigh Borough Council

Personal
Other

55

Leaver by reason - voluntary
01/01/2021- 31/12/2021
Career Opportunities
Change of career path
Personal
Retirement
End of contract
Other
Less Stress or Travel
Performance
Total

Number
31
16
16
9
5
4
1
1
83

The main reason for leaving was due to career opportunities which amounted to 31
leavers. This ties in with the ONS results regarding the influx and large increase in
job vacancies within the market.
The second largest reason for leaving was change of career path and personal
reasons with both categories where there were 16 leavers for each category. This
again supports the sentiments above around “The Great Resignation”
Number of voluntary leavers by executive
area for the period 1 Jan 2021 – 31 December
2021
Executive area

Number of
Voluntary
Leavers

Assets

10

Corporate

1

Customer Care

23

Environment

2

Finance and Housing

1

Governance

4

Health and Wellbeing

11

Neighbourhood Services

19

Organisational Development

5

Planning and Economy

7

Total

56

83

Eastleigh Borough Council

We continue to work to understand the reasons for staff leaving, through our exit
interview and questionnaire process. This is not a mandatory process although the
majority of staff are willing to voluntarily engage through either completing a
questionnaire and/or attending an interview with a member of the HR team. These
interviews and questionnaires give us a valuable insight into the reasons for leaving
as well as gauging general satisfaction with Eastleigh Borough Council as an
employer. Their feedback is reviewed and considered, especially by the Resourcing
project team and helps us to formulate and revise our HR policies and practices.
The internal apprenticeship programme and the corporate professional qualification
initiative will help to address our aim to “grow our own” talent and offer career
development opportunities within the Council.
The two other main reasons for leaving in 2021 were “personal” and “change of
career path”. This reflects the national trend arising from the pandemic where
employees have reflected on their personal situations and reconsidered their career
options.
Staff retention is regularly monitored and reported on as a key performance indicator
as part of the Corporate Performance framework.

5
5.1

Workforce Profile as of December 2021
Gender profile (all employees)

Female = 50% (same as in 2020)
Male = 50% (same as in 2020)
The table below shows the gender profile broken down by executive area:

Gender profile by Executive area and Overall
Overall
Planning and Economy
Organisational Development
Neighbourhood Services
Health and Wellbeing
Governance
Finance and Housing
Environment
Customer Care
Corporate
Assets
0%

10%

20%

30%
Female

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Male

Eastleigh Borough Council

57

Executive area

Female

Male

Assets

56%

44%

Corporate

69%

31%

Customer Care

75%

25%

Environment

43%

57%

Finance and Housing

33%

67%

Governance

82%

18%

Health and Wellbeing

76%

24%

Neighbourhood Services

15%

85%

Organisational
Development

44%

56%

Planning and Economy

65%

35%

Overall

50%

50%

The gender split across the Council is very well balanced as it has been in previous
years. There is a higher percentage of males compared to females in some of the
lower paid roles within the Council, largely due to the demographic within
Neighbourhood Services (i.e., Waste and StreetScene) operational teams. The
Council produces an annual Gender Pay Gap Report for submission to the
Government and it is available on the Council’s website. The Council has historically
shown a positive gender pay gap in favour of female staff which is further evidence
of the Council’s commitment to equality, fairness and inclusion.

5.2

Age profile

25 and under

58

= 6%

26 to 30

= 10%

31 to 40

= 23%

41 to 50

= 25%

51 to 55

= 10%

Eastleigh Borough Council

56 to 60

= 14%

61 to 65

= 10%

65 plus

= 2%

The table below shows the age breakdown by executive area:

Age profile by Executive area and Overall
Overall
Planning and Economy
Organisational Development
Neighbourhood Services
Health and Wellbeing
Governance
Finance and Housing
Environment
Customer Care
Corporate
Assets
0%
25 and under

10%

26 to 30

20%

31 to 40

30%
41 to 50

40%

50%

51 to 55

60%

70%

56 to 60

80%

90%

61 to 65

65 plus

Executive area

25 and 26
under
to
30

31
to
40

41
to
50

51
to
55

56
to
60

61
to
65

65
plus

Assets

5%

12%

20%

27%

14%

15%

5%

2%

Corporate

6%

0%

6%

63%

0%

19%

6%

0%

Customer Care

9%

15%

20%

20%

13%

15%

7%

1%

Environment

0%

5%

33%

43%

5%

0%

5%

9%

Finance and Housing

0%

19%

52%

14%

5%

5%

5%

0%

Governance

9%

14%

27%

18%

14%

9%

9%

0%

Health and Wellbeing

7%

9%

36%

21%

10%

5%

12%

0%

Eastleigh Borough Council

100%

59

Neighbourhood Services

5%

5%

19%

24%

10%

18%

16%

3%

Organisational
Development

2%

13%

20%

31%

16%

11%

7%

0%

The above tables show that the Council has a large proportion of its workforce aged
56 and over. As part of the Resourcing project this matter will be considered in terms
of creating succession planning strategies.

5.3

Ethnicity Profile (where the data is recorded)

2.2% (1.5% in 2021) of employees are recorded as being from an ethnic minority
background.
These rates have increased due to an exercise undertaken in 2021 to encourage
employees to record and report this data on their personal records within our
HR/Payroll system. 31% of employees have decided not to report this data.
The graphic below shows the ethnicity breakdown for Council employees (where this
information is recorded):

Overall ethnicity profile
White British
No data
White Other
Prefer not to say
Asian British Indian
Mixed Other
Black British African
Black British Other
Mxd Wht & Blk Carib
Other Ethnic Group
White Irish

5.4

Disability Profile (where the data is recorded)

4% (1. 5% in 2021) of employees considered themselves to have a disability.
These rates have increased due to an exercise undertaken in 2021 to encourage
employees to record and report this data on their personal records within our
HR/Payroll system. 31% of employees have decided not to report this data.

60

Eastleigh Borough Council

The ratio of employees either with a disability, or who have recorded themselves as
being from an ethnic minority background within our workforce remains low despite
the exercise undertaken in 2021 to encourage employees to report and record this
data on their personal records. We will continue to work to encourage higher
reporting of this data.
In addition, to improve consideration of equalities in service, project planning and for
key decisions, HR have been working closely with the Equalities Focus Group and
further staff training has been delivered to support Equalities Impact Assessments
and to assist with championing equalities across the organisation.
The Council is committed to ensuring our recruitment and employment practices are
fair and inclusive. Recruiting managers need to be aware of unconscious bias and
there is training available on the Council’s Learning Platform “EBC Learn” to support
this.
In 2021, a new recruitment module was introduced within the Council’s existing
HR/Payroll system. This module brings together the approval of recruitment and all
administration relating to job applications in one place and this should assist in the
collection of ethnicity data from applicants and to help understanding the profile of
the candidates being attracted. The rolling out of the module was supported by newly
produced recruitment policy and guidance for Managers and guided training
sessions from HR. Further training is planned for 2022 to support recruiting
managers to understand their obligations during the recruitment process in terms of
equality and diversity.
The Council has achieved ‘Disability Confident’ accreditation and continues to offer a
guaranteed interview to candidates with a disability who meet the minimum essential
criteria for any role that they apply for.
The Council also continues to support the publication “Living with Disability” through
taking out an advert focusing on the Council as a disability confident employer. The
magazine informs disabled people, their families and friends on how to access
available products and opportunities and helps to raise our profile as a Disability
Confident employer to its readership. As part of the Resourcing project,
consideration will be given as to how we might attract more applications from
disabled people for roles with the Council. Hybrid working practices make this more
attractive and accessible than more traditional office-based working practices.

6

Sickness Absence Data

The following tables shows the percentage of available working days lost due to
sickness for the past 7 years:
Year
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

% of days lost due
to sickness EBC
3.8%
3.0%
3.5%
4.2%
2.9%
Eastleigh Borough Council

61

2020
2021

3.3%
3.4%

All sickness absences are managed through the Council’s Absence and Wellbeing
Policy and managers are supported by HR with individual cases. The Council takes
a pro-active approach to managing absence through early engagement with
employees who are absent for any reason and using occupational health where
appropriate to seek medical advice on the capabilities of employees to return to
work. Where there is a real possibility of an earlier return to work through the use of
physiotherapy or other support, the Council will consider funding such treatment to
support an earlier return. This often reduces the time that an employee is off work
due to injury considerably when compared to waiting times for equivalent
physiotherapy treatments available through the NHS.
Sickness absence data is a key indicator of organisational performance and needs to
be well managed. It is reported on regularly to the Executive Team and senior
service managers.
The top three reasons stated for absence during 2021 were stress, musculo skeletal
and colds/flu. The higher incidence of colds/flu in 2021 can be explained in part due
to symptoms being similar to COVID-19.
Long term absences accounted for 54% of absences in the Council.

Executive area
Assets

88%

12%

100%

0%

Customer Care

69%

31%

Environment

50%

50%

Finance and Housing

67%

33%

0%

100%

Health and Wellbeing

67%

33%

Neighbourhood
Services

53%

47%

Organisational
Development

50%

50%

100%

0%

Corporate

Governance

Planning and Economy

62

% of absences long % of absences short
term
term

Eastleigh Borough Council

Percentage of absences that are long term/short term
Overall
Planning and Economy
Organisational Development
Neighbourhood Services
Health and Wellbeing
Governance
Finance and Housing
Environment
Customer Care
Corporate
Assets
0%

10%

20%

30%

% of absences long term

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

% absences short term

We continued to support employees through the pandemic in 2021 through the
production of monthly health and wellbeing bulletins and raising the awareness of
the employee assistance programme.

7

HR Casework

The following table shows the number of formal cases being managed with support
from HR for the past 3 years:
2019

2020

2021

31

19

27

Formal Disciplinary Hearings

7

3

3

Formal Grievance Hearings

4

1

0

Formal Performance Management
Cases

3

3

2

Dismissals on probation

0

3

1

Formal Absence Management
Cases

It is pleasing to note that there were no formal grievances during 2021 because the
levels of grievances are often considered a barometer of employee satisfaction. HR
polices are located on the Staff Hub so that staff and Managers have easy access.
The HR team continues to provide support to Managers in handling any cases.

Eastleigh Borough Council

63

Issues have been resolved informally with close working between HR, Managers and
the trade unions.
Whilst the pandemic has significantly affected the way we work across the Council,
with significant numbers of employees working remotely from home, casework has
still arisen and HR specialists have continued to support Managers to handle these.
The majority of the formal meetings were of course held in a socially distanced
manner or, more commonly, over Microsoft teams. Our approach continues to be in
line with market best practice and guidance.
As a result of the pandemic, there were a number of revisions and additions to our
suite of HR policies and procedures, to reflect both changes in legislation and
amendments to working practices as a result of remote working and social distancing
requirements.

8

Learning and Development

Our general corporate training offering was lower during 2021 compared with
previous years due to the continuing impact of the covid-19 pandemic and the
restructure of the Council. The corporate training requirements from each executive
area for the financial year 2022/23 are currently being gathered and these will be
formulated into the training plan. Initial indications are that learning and development
requirements will be increased significantly in the next financial year, probably as a
result of many planned learning and development plans being on hold during the
past 18-20 months due to the pandemic but will still be managed within budget.
Throughout 2021, the EBCLearn platform that was launched in 2020 has enabled us
to continue to provide access to training and development learning as well as
supportive learning materials on health and wellbeing and other associated topics,
for example time management, personal resilience, stress management. The system
enables training records to be stored in one place and also provides significantly
improved reporting tools in relation to learning and development. For example, the
Council is able to identify the numbers of employees who have accessed a particular
training module and Managers can access a “dashboard” relating to the training that
their own team has completed/not completed. This enables the Council to identify
and track employees’ completion of mandatory training.
With the revised structure in early 2021, a comprehensive development programme
has been rolled out to the 9 newly appointed Executive Heads which was almost
complete at the end of 2021. This included training on such matters as managing
time and focus, engaging and mobilising managers, applying resonant leadership
and using connective intelligence to enhance decision-making. In addition, a
comprehensive series of “Coaching in the Moment” modules was available for
Managers to help to embed the culture of coaching as part of normal day to day
management activities at Eastleigh. These modules were completed in January
2022. Work to ensure this training has been fully embedded will continue in 2022.
A new Professional Qualifications Policy will be launched in the new financial year
(2022/23) in line with the revised learning and development budgets aligned to the
new Executive areas. It is hoped that this will encourage employees to further
consider their professional development using the apprentice levy fund wherever
possible which frees up valuable learning and development funds for other training.

64

Eastleigh Borough Council

The Policy establishes a formal route for employees to request access to
professional qualifications and to ensure best value is achieved from our apprentice
levy fund. It is hoped that this will assist in our aim to retain our own in-house talent.

8.1

Apprenticeships

During 2021, 9 new apprenticeships began in the Council, as follows: 







1 Chartered Manager degree apprenticeship
1 Business Administrator
1 Heavy vehicle service and maintenance technician
2 team leader/supervisor apprenticeships
2 Chartered Town Planner degree apprenticeships
1 Internal Audit professional
1 Professional Accounting/taxation technician

Plans are already in place for two additional apprenticeships to commence in early
2022.
We continue to work with Managers to encourage them to consider recruiting an
apprentice for lower salary banded roles and in entry-level technical roles. The week
of 7 to 13 February 2022 was National Apprentice Week and information was
circulated to Managers to raise awareness of the use of apprenticeships in the
Council. If a qualification can be funded through the apprentice levy, we will not fund
this through the training budget.

8.2

Work Experience, Careers Outreach

Work experience continues to be an important gateway for recruitment and the
Council’s Website now has a dedicated work experience page where interested
applicants can follow a process to request to undertake work experience at the
Council. We regularly take work experience placements across a number of service
areas. Due to COVID-19 and social distancing measures, the guidance for Managers
on the management of work experience placements has been updated to ensure
that anyone undertaking a placement with Eastleigh has a meaningful experience
and is adequately supported and managed when in a hybrid working environment.
Due to the pandemic, there were no face-to-face careers events possible in local
schools and colleges in 2021 although we engaged with virtual events wherever
possible and will continue to do so in 2022.
The One Horton Heath team has taken on a supported internship and two “T level”
student placements and work experience placements have been offered across
other areas of the Council.

9

People Strategy Update

The Council’s current People Strategy is based on three key principles; Attract,
Develop and Retain. The Strategy details the activities that aim to ensure the
Council has the right people with the right skills, attitude, motivation and flexibility to
deliver services and objectives; it focuses on five key areas:

Eastleigh Borough Council

65







Pay and Reward;
Recruitment and Retention;
Performance Management;
Skills Development;
Leadership Development;

This strategy was reviewed during 2021 as a result of the continuing impact of the
pandemic, the move to a hybrid way of working and the impact of the difficulties in
the recruitment market which are currently being faced by most employers. The
Council has launched a Resourcing project to consider the five strands of the People
Strategy with a view to making Eastleigh Borough Council an employer of choice.
The Resourcing project will look at a significant number of key areas under the
banner of Attract, Develop and Retain and we have recruited a temporary
Recruitment and Retention Specialist on a 6-month contract to assist with the many
branches of this far-reaching project, such as:











9.1

The advertising and promotion of EBC vacancies
Growing talent, succession planning, use of apprenticeships and learning and
development
Benchmarking salaries against competitors in the marketplace
Extending our employee benefits offering
Analysing recruitment processes to ensure we are giving a good candidate
experience
Upgrading job descriptions to ensure they are clear
Measuring the success of the Council’s induction processes
Reviewing HR policies and procedures to ensure they remain fit for purpose
Producing recommendations from the hybrid working trial in 2022
Ensuring that the Council is attracting a more diverse workforce and
considering ways to increase or visibility to the widest range of candidates.

Pay and reward

Each year, employees receive a nationally agreed “cost of living” increase that is set
nationally and following that we agree our local pay award that is based on individual
employee performance. At the time of writing, the “cost of living” increase for 2021
has yet to be settled at national level, with trade unions balloting members on
industrial action in support of an improved pay award offer. This “cost of living”
increase was due to be paid in April 2021.
Due to the delay, for 2021, the Corporate Leadership Board made the decision to
pay the local pay award in advance of the national settlement and this was paid into
employees’ salaries in December 2021. For both 2020 and 2021, due to the
pandemic, a decision was taken to award all employees a standardised local pay
award due to the on-going efforts that staff had made as a result of the pandemic.

66

Eastleigh Borough Council

The Council continues to demonstrate its commitment to the Living Wage by
increasing payments to £9.90 per hour from April 2022. The Council was also
successful in achieving accreditation as a Living Wage Employer during 2021.

9.2

Recruitment and Retention

Recruitment has continued in a remote way during 2021 although there have been
increasing issues in attracting quality candidates for some roles as a result of the
issues already outlined earlier in this report.
One particular issue the Council faced in 2021 was in the recruitment and retention
of qualified LGV drivers in Waste Services. The shortage of LGV drivers in the
market was the subject of significant media attention when all employers reported
issues with recruiting LGV drivers. The shortage was exacerbated by a number of
drivers from Europe leaving the UK as a result of Brexit and with COVID-19
restricting the number of driving tests available for new LGV drivers to qualify. As a
result of a benchmarking exercise to compare the Council’s LGV drivers’ salaries
with the local market, a temporary market supplement was put in place in 2021. A
longer-term resolution will be considered as part of the Resourcing project already
mentioned in this report.
During 2021, all of the newly created Executive Head roles had been filled and were
in post, with 8 posts having been filled by internal promotion of existing staff and one
external recruit.
In late 2021, a new recruitment module, within our existing HR/Payroll system, was
introduced across the Council. This enables the recruitment processes to be
automated and introduces a platform for external candidates to manage their
applications to the Council. The rollout was supported by training and briefing
sessions for users as well as a revised Recruitment Policy and associated guidance.
In late 2021, a “buddy scheme” was introduced to support new starters, particular in
light of the fact that the majority of employees continue to work from home/in a
hybrid way. A “buddy” is someone who partners with a new employee during their
first few weeks of employment, which is a crucial time for the new employee. Their
primary role is to offer advice and guidance regarding the day-to-day aspects of
working for the Council and may also offer encouragement and knowledge. Line
Managers are responsible for identifying a suitable buddy for any new starter in their
teams.

9.3

Performance Management

The Council introduced a revised People Performance framework in November 2018
based on the principles that all staff should have regular performance, wellbeing and
development discussions. Within this, employees should have a clear work
programme and SMART objectives in place so that discussions on priorities, issues
and problems can also take place on a structured basis. The framework also
ensures that every employee plays an active part in their own performance
management. Fundamental to the performance process are regular 1:1 meetings
between Managers and employees and, due to the pandemic, these have become a
key cornerstone of regular communication between Managers and staff. The results
of the staff pulse surveys undertaken during 2020 have shown that on the whole

Eastleigh Borough Council

67

Managers were doing an excellent job of keeping employees informed and in regular
contact. Further consideration will be given to the current performance management
process during 2022 to ensure that it remains relevant in the climate in which we are
now operating and against the background of the market challenges we are facing.
Part of this review will include the consideration of a technological solution to
performance management as our current process is very paper based. Early
research has already begun in this respect.

10

Other updates
10.1 Thank You Cards
These cards were introduced in 2019 and continued to be used across the Executive
Areas. They continue to receive positive feedback and have been a more tangible
way of saying “thank you” to employees as the majority are working remotely from
colleagues and customers.

10.2 Shopping Vouchers
Managers can award £20 shopping vouchers to distribute to their staff as they deem
appropriate to recognise individual staff contributions. The vouchers are a way to
give a small but tangible token of recognition which supports the Council’s
commitments to individual contributions. Feedback to date is very positive and staff
have stated that they really appreciate the quick and simple recognition from their
manager.

10.3 Staff Awards
The new Staff Awards process was launched in September 2019 based on the four
key themes within our new Way We Work framework and a #TeamEBC award for
the teams. In 2020, there was an increase in the number of individuals and teams
nominated for awards than in 2019 and the event itself was held virtually over Teams
in January 2021. As an addition for 2020, each employee who was nominated for an
award received a personalised message to inform them of the content of their
nomination(s) and this was well received. Although an in-person event was initially
planned for early 2022, due to the impact of the Omicron variant, it was decided that
the staff awards celebration would again be a virtual event. It was pleasing to see
that over 150 nominations were put forward, covering 100 employees, in the 2021
Staff Awards.
Employee Wellbeing –Monthly “Our Wellbeing” bulletins (bringing together all
wellbeing news and information into one place for easy access) are now an
established regular monthly communication to all staff. The Council’s network of
internal mental health champions continues to meet on a 6-weekly basis to share
news and information on wellbeing topics and the champions are available for
confidential conversations with employees about their mental health. In early 2021,
we engaged with an additional temporary service to enable staff to access regular
workshops on a weekly basis on various health and wellbeing topics provided
through our Employee Assistance Programme. In early 2022, our internal Mental
Health Champions received a presentation from Vita, the company running our
Employee Assistance Programme, so that they could signpost employees to the
programme with full knowledge of the wide variety of assistance that it can provide.
The Programme can offer advice, support, guidance and information from topics as

68

Eastleigh Borough Council

diverse as mental health, financial planning, legal advice, career planning and
relationship advice.
Vita will also release some communications regarding the roll-out of the support
website/contact feature in a mobile app. This will mean that employees have greater
access to the Programme which is free to access and confidential.
In early 2021 we rolled out a programme of “Care” (Connect, Adapt, Resources and
Evaluate) training modules which were aimed at giving employees tools to support
themselves and others in the following months whilst working in a social-distanced
manner from colleagues. This covered topics such as connecting with colleagues
whilst working remotely, managing personal resilience, formulating team charters
and managing resources. Feedback showed that these were well-received and were
delivered at just the right time.
During Mental Health Week in May 2021, we issued daily mental health bulletins to
staff on the subject of Nature with tips, hints and guidance on mental health. Plans
are already underway to mark Mental Health Awareness week in May 2022 in a
similar way.
During 2021 we formulated a new COVID-19 testing policy for employees, in line
with the establishment of a temporary testing facility in The Point. We continued to
encourage employees to take up the offer of a vaccination and to allow time during
working hours where this was necessary.

10.4 Payroll
In 2022, we rolled out an automated process within the existing HR/Payroll system
(XCD) for the claiming of overtime by employees which decreases the amount of
manual paper claims across the Council and brings it into line with the method for
claiming expenses.
At the time of writing this report, a major upgrade is being installed to the HR/Payroll
system which has required significant user acceptance testing and support for its
implementation. This has all been achieved in addition to the normal monthly payroll
processes.
In early 2021 we introduced a new “Give As You Earn” scheme which allows
employees to give regularly to any UK charity straight from their salary. Donations
made in this way are tax efficient because they are taken before tax is applied, which
means that the charity benefits more from each donation and it costs the donor less.
Payroll giving is seen as a positive employee benefit and is in accord with our “social
conscience”. With the devastating financial impact of the pandemic on charities, we
hope that such schemes can help to bridge some of the gaps in charities’ income.

10.5 Union collaboration
The Council is keen to support union membership and there is recognised facility
time for union representatives. It is very pleasing to report that Unison has a local
branch secretary and there continues to be a growing number of additional official
trade union representatives amongst Council staff. The Council has supported the
branch secretary with an additional day per week purely dedicated to union
duties/facility time. Throughout 2021, HR worked closely and collaboratively with the
Eastleigh Borough Council

69

unions to deal with any urgent matters raised by staff. This enabled issues to be
resolved quickly and efficiently without the need to recourse to more formal methods
of resolution. More formal matters continue to be raised through the Council’s Joint
Consultative Committee which includes members of Management, HR and the
various trade unions.

11

12

Financial Implications
Staff costs represent our largest revenue expense, so it is essential our People and
Reward strategies support the delivery our corporate objectives in the most efficient
way. However, there are no specific costs associated with this report’s
recommendations.

Risk Assessment
There are no specific risks associated with this report. However, it should be noted
that the Council has staff recruitment and retention and wellbeing included on the
Corporate Risk Register and is continuing to monitor mitigation as part of the
Corporate Risk Management Framework. Having sufficient resource is fundamental
to ensuring the Council can continue to deliver its services.

13

Equality and Diversity Implications
The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the Council need to
ensure that all its people management practices adhere to the Equality Act and
actively support a tolerant and inclusive working environment. It needs to ensure it
has robust policies and practices in place to eliminate discrimination, advance
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between different people. A full
Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out for the purposes of this
report because while there are some equalities impacts, it is not proportionate to
carry out a full EIA.

14

15

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
There are no specific climate change or environmental implications from this report.

Conclusion
With the establishment of the Executive Team in 2021, there is increased
collaboration and ownership across the whole of the Council on staffing matters.
In common with most organisations there are challenges in recruitment and retention
across the Council. The Resourcing project has been referenced in this report
repeatedly and that highlights its importance to the Council especially in the
forthcoming year.
The development of our future ways of working is also a key issue and this will
influence the delivery of the Council’s priorities. It is important the Council continues
to build on this progress and continues to support and promote a productive,
inclusive, supportive and enjoyable work environment.
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
Date:
e-mail:

70

Sukhi Aujla and Shirley Robbins HR Lead
023 8068 8166
17/02/2022
hrhead@eastleigh.gov.uk
Eastleigh Borough Council

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.
None.

Eastleigh Borough Council

71

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

73

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 12

Document is Restricted

75

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

81

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

83

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

85

This page is intentionally left blank

